», Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reportl ng Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations
CSW-44 on-lineat http://www.iisd.ca/4wcw/csw44/

Vol. 14 No. 32

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Wednesday, 15 March 2000

CSW-44 HIGHLIGHTS:
TUESDAY, 14 MARCH 2000
On Tuesday, delegates met in Working Group | in the morning and
evening to continue discussion of Section I (achievements and obsta-
cles). Working Group |1 convened in the morning to continue negotia-
tion of Section IV (actionsand initiatives).

WORKING GROUP |

On paragraph 8 (achievementsin the critical areaof women and
health), referencesto sexual and reproductive health and sexual and
reproductive rightswere supported by TURKEY, PERU, JAMAICA,
COSTA RICA, DOMINICAN REPUBLIC, NAMIBIA,
COLOMBIA, SWAZILAND, CHILE, GHANA, VENEZUELA,
MALAWI, BOLIVIA, CUBA and BRAZIL. MEXICO noted that
sexual and reproductive rights are broadly defined in the Beijing PFA.
SOUTH AFRICA supported retaining referenceto reproductive
rights.

TheHOLY SEE, supported by SYRIA and IRAN, stated that the
PFA hasclear reference to reproductive rights and sexual and repro-
ductive health, but does not mention sexual rights. He stated that dele-
gateswere not at the PrepCom to negotiate text but to assess progress
sincethe Beijing Conference. NICARAGUA, POLAND, ALGERIA,
and HONDURA S opposed reference to sexual rights. SUDAN and
MOROCCO also opposed language on sexual rights, and referred to
reservations stated in the |CPD Report. The G-77/CHINA noted it had
no common position on paragraph 8. The EU supported referenceto
breast-feeding, provided wording was aligned with that of the Secre-
tary-General’sreview and appraisal of theimplementation of the
Beijing PFA (E/CN.6/2000/PC/2), and the reference was placed later
inthe paragraph.

Regarding language referring to increased knowledge and use of
family planning and contraceptive methods, the HOLY SEE,
supported by HONDURAS and NICARAGUA, stated that family
planning includes contraception, and said they could only agreeto the
original wording if language on parental guidance were added.
MEXICO suggested text referring to various contraceptive methods.
BRAZIL supported referring to family planning and contraceptive
methods. Thetext remains bracketed.

The EU, supported by TURKEY and BRAZIL, suggested placing
areferenceto cancer prevention in the paragraph on obstaclesto
women and health. MEX1CO suggested its del etion, del egates agreed
and the reference was removed.

Onincreased awareness among men of their responsibility with
regard to contraception and family planning, SUDAN emphasized the
roleof thefamily inaccessing contraception. JUSCANZ supported the
origina wording. Thetext remains bracketed.

Delegates agreed to include referencesto: increased attention to
sexually transmitted infectionsand HIV/AIDS; introduction of a
gender perspectivein health and health-rel ated education and physica
activities, and gender-specific prevention and rehabilitation
programmes on substance abuse; increased attention to women's
mental health; and increased attention to health conditions at work.
~ On aproposal referring to greater recognition of women'srole as
essential primary health-care providerswithin their familiesand
increased participation of women asworkersin the health-care
system, the EU said it could support the languageif referenceto men
and details on the type of health-care work were added. The text
remains bracketed.

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Tonya Barnes <tmb34@columbia.edu>, Wendy Jackson <wendy@iisd.org>, Violette
Lacloche <violette@iisd.org> and Gretchen Sidhu <gsidhu@igc.org>. The Editor is PamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the M anaging Editor is L angston James "Kimo"
Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the
Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom
Department for International Development (DFI D) and the European Commission (DG-ENV.) General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 s provided by thethe German Federal
Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of
Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the
Government of Australia, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and BP Amoco. Specific funding for coverage of the
Beijing +5 process has been provided by The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairsand the United Kingdom DFID. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org>
and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. || SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca>and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4,
Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the
Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercia publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial
publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://
www.iisd.callinkages/. The satellite image was taken above New York ©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http:/livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin,
send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Wednesday, 15 March 2000

Vol. 14 No. 32 Page 2

On paragraph 16 (achievements on women in power and decision-
making), del egates supported acompil ation proposal acknowledging
growing acceptance of theimportance of women’sfull participationin
decision-making and power at all levelsandin all fora, including inter-
governmental, governmental, and non-governmental sectors. Dele-
gates also agreed to text proposed by JUSCANZ onincreased
awareness of the systemic changes needed to create gender balance.

On areferenceto reconciling family and employment responsibili-
ties of women and men, the EU preferred, and delegates supported,
language on work responsibilitiesin order to include self-employed
women. The G-77/CHINA suggested referring to affirmative action
policies, while JUSCANZ called for language on positive action poli-
cies. Delegates agreed on affirmative and positive action policies. The
EU proposed inclusion of language on voluntary agreements. The G-
77/CHINA opposed and suggested specifying voluntary agreementsin
some countries. Del egates agreed to text referring to the establishment,
upgrading and strengthening of national mechanisms and machineries
for the advancement of women aswell as national and international
networks of women politicians, parliamentarians, activists and profes-
sionalsinvariousfields. With all these changes, the paragraph was
adopted.

On paragraph 17 (obstaclesto women in power and decision-
making), the G-77/CHINA proposed, and del egates accepted, refer-
enceto the persistence of the gap between de jure and defacto equality
of women despite general acceptance of the need for gender balance.
JUSCANZ proposed, and all agreed, replacing representation at the
highest level swith participation at the highest levels. The G-77/
CHINA preferred deleting a JUSCANZ reference to the need for
gender balance in decision-making bodies at all levels, but supported
text noting that women continue to be underrepresented at legidative,
ministerial, sub-ministerial levels, and at al socio-economic levels.
JUSCANZ proposed, and del egates accepted, alternative language
referring to the highest levels of the corporate sector and other social
and economic institutions. The EU suggested additional referenceto:
clear and transparent appointment and sel ection criteria; balanced
participation in decision-making; willingnessto share power; suffi-
cient dialogue and cooperation; and adaptation of palitical structures.
Thislast reference remains bracketed.

WORKING GROUP |1

On paragraph 53 (programme support to meet the specific needs of
women for capacity building and to enhance gender mainstreaming
activities), agroup of countries submitted text referring to the expan-
sion of new areas of programming to advance gender equality in
response to current challenges, and suggested del eting referenceto

encouraging women'’s participation in, and contribution to,
programmes designed to bring about peace. The paragraph was
adopted.

Delegates agreed to merge paragraph 44 bis (factorsto take into
account when designing policies and programmes addressing the
needs of women and girls) and paragraph 53 bis (girls and women of
al ageswith any form of disability). Onthe merged text, agroup of
countries highlighted that their proposal incorporateslanguage
contained inthe PFA.. A regional group lamented that the proposed
paragraph: omits definition of thelife cycle and childhood; replaces
theissue of diversity of women with referenceto elements of discrimi-
nation; and emphasizes categories of women with disabilities and
infectious diseases over other groups. Several delegations proposed
including referenceto sexual orientation, others opposed, and the para-
graph remains bracketed.

IN THE CORRIDORS

One negotiating blocis reportedly no longer willing to talk seri-
ously about implementation of the PFA without financial concessions
from other delegations. NGOs from some of these countries are still
hoping to obtain aworkable document to assist their efforts back
home.

Meanwhile, del egates are upping the negotiating ante. Some are
calling for referenceto poverty in thewidely bracketed chapeau to
Section 1V, and are unlikely to sign off. Othersare proposing refer-
encesto sexual orientation— one of the most hotly disputed subjectsin
Beijing. Aretheselatter del egates speaking on behal f of what some say
isagrowing lobbying force in their countries—including the lesbian
caucus meeting during the PrepCom? Or isthis achance to set the bar
high enough to force concession on other issues? Some del egates
claimit would be premature to say; other participants expect sexual
orientation to befolded into its usual place under “other status.”

Discussions are brewing about some forms of lobbying onthe
floor, including an impromptu prayer servicein one case. Some NGOs
maintain that access to the talks must remain democratic, even asthey
sniff out signsthat there may be actors here attempting to fine-tune
their strategiesto stall the process.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

WORKING GROUPS: Working Group | will reconvene at 3:00
pm and from 8:00 to 11:00 pm in the ECOSOC Council Chamber to
continue discussion of Sections |1 and to begin discussion of Section
[11. Working Group |1 is expected to meet at 10:00 am and 3:00 pmin
Conference Room 1 to continuework on Section I V.

CONTACT GROUP: The contact group on Section | will meet at
4:00 pmin Conference Room A.



